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11th March 2013

Strategic Planning Dept.,
West Sussex County Council,
County Hall,		
Chichester,
West Sussex, PO19 1RH.
(Sent by e-mail to planning.applications@westsussex.gov.uk)

Dear Sirs,

Application ref: WSCC/005/14/BA:  Application by Cuadrilla Balcombe Limited re hydrocarbon flow testing at its Lower Stumble Farm site in Balcombe, Mid Sussex.
CPRE is a national charity with 2,000 members resident across Sussex and many more beyond.  Our principal Branch object is to promote and encourage the improvement, protection and preservation of the countryside of Sussex and its towns and villages.  CPRE supports the need for our local villages and towns to remain economically vibrant and self-sustaining, and recognises the need for sustainable growth and development so long as it is sensitively planned for its environment, of good quality, and meets a local need.
We have previously expressed to you our considerable concerns as to the potential environmental and other damage that hydrocarbon drilling at this sensitive location could cause.
We recognise that, notwithstanding these concerns, exploratory drilling at the site has been permitted and taken place, and that the current application relates solely to flow testing over a temporary period of one exploratory well that it has drilled; and does not seek permission for any further drilling work.  We also take note of the statement by Cuadrilla that hydraulic fracturing techniques would not need to be used at any point if future extraction or other drilling were ever to be permitted at this site.
Our representations below are therefore limited to issues of concern to us arising in respect of the limited proposed testing activity.  We would raise far more substantive issues if a commercial exploitation license were ever to be sought. 
1. License period 
We query the need for a permit lasting as long as six months given the timelines indicated by Cuadrilla in their application and planning statement for the three stages of preparation, testing and restitution involved.  The disruption should be kept to a minimum period.
2. Environmental concerns and conditions
We note Cuadrilla’s suggestion that its new permit should be granted subject only to the same conditions as those which attached to its 2010 exploratory drilling permission.  We consider it vital that WSCC should not grant any further license without having considered the implications (and the potential for different or additional precautionary conditions) of
· applicable regulatory changes and substantial new guidance issued since 2010;

· subsequent improvements in local geological, and other scientific, knowledge and experience;

· the validity in practice of material safety, environmental and health assumptions that have been made by Cuadrilla to date, e.g. vis a vis its non-exposure to flooding and the impermeability of its anti-spillage membrane;

· the outcomes of required monitoring of air, soil and water quality and contamination/spillage arising from the exploratory drilling activities in 2013, their suitability and sufficiency in practice, and the level of compliance by Cuadrilla with that required monitoring regime;

· Cuadrilla’s proposals for new groundwater quality monitoring on- and off-site, and to install additional aquifer water quality monitoring arrangements within the new well at the southern end of the site.

We consider it important that your authority should be in a position to demonstrate to the public that it has fully considered best available scientific advice, and how it has scrupulously applied Government regulations and guidance at this, and all other, stages of this sensitive licensing process, and that it is holding the operator to account in respect of its permit conditions, monitoring obligations and application promises.  This is all the more important given the environmental issues that inevitably arise with any industrial activity permitted within a designated Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty having regard to the “highest state of protection” afforded to its landscape, scenic beauty and wildlife conservation by paragraph 115 of the National Planning Performance Framework.

3. AONB  
We urge you to take full account of the advice of the High Weald AONB Unit when determining the application.
4. Noise  
We have concern about potential noise levels, particularly during night-time flaring. Cuadrilla claims at para 5.2 of its Noise Impact Appraisal (App D to their application) that noise from their operational testing would have  "a low adverse impact from the aspect of noise and the overall effect of these operations would not be significant", and that noise levels should be permitted at the same "noise limits as imposed on the drilling operations at the well site, as previously consented by the planning authority" (advised absolute noise limits of 55dB(A) daytime and 42dB(A) night time).   However, we note that Cuadrilla excludes flaring noise from its predicted noise levels because (as it admits) it cannot predict noise levels reliably from its continuous flaring because flaring decibel levels will depend on the flow levels achieved - the very thing they are expecting to establish through this next testing process.  
In view of that, we think that noise emission controls should be imposed by requiring the flare to be enclosed, and by requiring throttling back the flow during the sensitive night time period if decibel levels at any time exceed 37dB(A) (see Planning Statement para 4.4).
5.	Bats  
The bat survey last August (unhelpfully conducted in the middle of the disruption of the exploratory drilling process) identified the nearby presence of a number of bat species, and recommended that flood lighting is re-aligned to avoid light spillage to the north and reduce its spillage across the other boundaries, and also that the level of lighting reduced if possible.  However, the bat survey does not address the implications for bats of flaring, or of the proximity and alignment of flare stack with site lighting.   
This risk should be investigated.
6.	Aftercare  
Given that the site is within the High Weald AONB, we urge your authority to require Cuadrilla to give more attention to the site’s appropriate aftercare – which is merely referred to laxly as a “return to its former forestry use” - in accordance with para 75 of DCLG's Planning Practice Guidance for Onshore Oil and Gas – July 2013 in the event that testing demonstrates the non-viability of commercial exploitation of the site.
Yours faithfully,

Michael A. Brown
Trustee, for and on behalf of the Campaign to Protect Rural England, Sussex Branch
www.cpresussex.org.uk
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Standing up for your countryside





